Ref. No. 2

"A TOW. IS BORW"

oy Blizavetn V. Scanair
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% oréer to present the story of the birth of %ae

‘owr. ¢t lMaynard, it is necessary to learn the histories
of Liae two parent towns from wrom the land was tak.. Fo
its formation in 1871, 1300 acres were taken fror Otovw
and -9200 acres from Sudbury--z total of five and scven
tentus square miles, (Ref. No.l)

Sudbury had itse beginning in 1638, It extended
from Weston (then a part of Watertown) to the Assabvet
River, It was the 19th town in the IFassachusetts Bay
Colorny and only the second plantation settled away from
the coastline, The settlers were Englishmen, some of
whon migrated from Vatertown and came to America from
the zhip "Arbella" a few vears previously., But most of
the seitlers came ¢irectly from England. The Suddbury
tow. records contain lists of ine names o the settl:ro
fro. “atertown and also the nares of the Jirst sev:. rc
wvho co: from Erngziand on the "good ship Confidence" .n
April of 1638,

The land awzrded to the settlers was allcuil G
them v three different grants, being preceded by three
dif: .-,ent petitions,

mhe boundsries of ti.. land of the first grant &as
est: % Zshed by a committee ap .inted by the Colcuy
Cou- : are descrived on t.e Colony Records as:

np tract of lana .iout 5 miles square, bovnded By
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Concord on the North, Watertown (now Weston) on the Rast,

and on the South a line running a little to the East of
Nobscot Hillfalong the present Framingham and Sudbury
boundary to Weston, and on the Vest a line two miles East
of the present western boundary,"

The following year an additional mile on the Southeast
and Southwestern sides of the town was granted.

Deeds registering purchase of the lands by the colonists
from the Indians, bear the signatures of Cato and his bro-
thers Cutchamokim and Jojenny, and were signed by Governor
John Winthrop in 1648,

The third grant was made in 1649 and is known zas the
two mile grant, The deed for the purchase of this land from
the Indians to the Colony Courts is on récord at the iiddle~
sex Registry of Deeds in Cambridge. It is dated Ociober 15,
1684 and is signed by Indians Jehojakim, John ¥Vagnus, John;
Trusqua., Benjamin‘Bohue, John and James Speen, Dorothy Vemme-
too, Humphrey Bohue, Mary Neppanum, Abigail Harding, Peter
Jethro, Peter Muskquamogfuy John Boman, David ¥annoon,
"Ancient native and hereditary Indian proprietors of this
two miles of land." The price paid was "12 pounds of cur=-
rent money of New England" (about %60,00¢)

The Colony Record concerning this grant is "That Sud-
bury is granted two miles westward next adjoining to thex
for’their further enlargement, provided it not prejudice

William Brown in his 200 acres already granied." Tae land
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cranted to Brown is descr” a2d in the Colony Records

200 acres of land to be layed out to him ouiside the west
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line of Sudbury, by Captain Simon Willard and Sergeant

Vheeler, for 25 pounds, All this land was probably in that

.part of Sudbury which is now Faynard, It was 5 miles in

length and 2 miles wide,

The Act of Incorporation for the Sudbury Plantation
was drava up and signed Septeﬁber 4, 1639, when the Colony
Court ordered that '"the new Plantation by Concord shall be
called Sudbdbury." It is thought that the name "Sudbury"
was given by Rev, Edmund Brown, first minister of Sudbury
who figured prominently in ifs settlement and who cam
from the vicinity of Sudbury, England,

The territory of Stow as it was originally settled
in 1650, was more than twice the size of its present area,
It extended from the Assabet River to ILancaster and from
Concord to Harlboro. From that tract of land parts of it.
were taken to form other towns as we now know them: Thesé
towns are Harvard, incorporated ;n 1735, Shirley in 1764,
Boxboro in 1783, Hudson in 1866. In 1871, 1300 acres
and 800 inhabitants from'the easterly section was taken

towards the formation o the Town of ¥aynard, Altuocuzh
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Stow was one of the earliest Colonial towas it was
cult to assign settlers there, The first scitlements were
made by lLlavthew Boone in 1660 near the Sudbury line:z and

by John Kettle in 1663 near the Lancaster border. Iuch of
the area, however, was woodland and the meadows were not

as suitable for farming\as were those rich and fertile ficlds

in Concord and Sudbury. Ioreover, the territory was isolated
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from the other two plantziions by the river -ré great
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the Indians and their tomahawks contributed to the forfs
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of the lands back to the Courts. Again, in 1678 a
committee wés chosen by the court "to lay out in the
most convenient places Twelve Lots, contairning 50

acres of land, as near together as they may be', Tné

etitioners were to cast iots for these homesteads,

b

and tne place be settled with no less than 10 famiiles,
This plan worked out and oy October of 1681 the inhabi-
tants had so increased in numbers that four men were
appointed by the prudential committee to take charge of
the plantation. These were Thomas Steves, Bo Brown,
Thomas Gates and Stephen Hall and were invested with

the powers of selectmen., By early 1683 the settlers,
anxious to take their place among the Colony tovms began
proceedings for incorporation, In their petition to the
General Court was included a list of names and a request ;
that "a suitable and comly name be given." Included in
this list was the name "Stow." Governor Rradstreet had
befriended a man named John Stow on the ship bearing
them to the New World, When he came upon the name on
the list he naturally thought of his friend and called
the new tovm "Stow." This was ¥ay 16, 1683, Arrange-
ments were made and deeds were drawn in 1684 to purchase
formally the lands from the Indians, The signees of the
deed are the same as on itne deceds for the Sudbury land
purchases,

It will be noted that decds Tor the lands were not

$

given to the Indians for sever.l vears after the Jsurt

-

grants, This was probavly decav.s. the settlers .hem-

selves became doudbtful as time went on that their
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claim to the land was valid and formal steps were

" taken to award payments to the Indians,

The colonies of Sudbury and Stow continued to
grow and develop despite hardships incurred by nature
and conflicts with the Indiaﬁs. The hudb of communi-
cations in those early days were the meetin-houses for
public worship, Stow's first meeting house was built
in 1686 in the lower village east of the "0ld Common"
and was used for 30 years. 'As years passed, larger
and more comfortable churches were built to accomodate
the growing population,

The lush valley by the Sudbury River was a natur-
al magnet to the pioneers and thus the eastern section
of the plantation was found most desirous and became
the center of activity from the very beginning. It
was not until 1650 that development of the west side
began, and this'only after investigations of the coun-
try and its native inhaﬁitants, and a substantial
roadway was built to this area., The portion of the
land was called "The New Grant ﬁands" and was divided
by tne land court into sguadrons: The south-east was
the first squadron, the north-east the second, the north-
west the third, and soutn-west tﬁe fourth. Xach squad-
rén was divided into equal size of 140 acres and were
awar cd to the settlers by lot. Persons by the names
of ‘lowe, Parmentcr, Voodlward, LiooTe, Brown, VWalker, Noyes,

s s P N el
Balcolm and Rice were some of the first residents ol Tals
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fine new territory and later came Fairbanks, Stone,
Willis, Smith, Hayden, }aynard, Perry, Bowker, Vose,
Brigham and others. From territory in the third

trict" was
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squadron, knowvm as the "Nort}~dc
taken 1900 acres to make up part of Faynard. This

was the land awarded to Sudbury in 1649 which we have
already described as the two-mile grant and for which
about 360,00 was paid to the Indians. Its nortaerly
boundary was a direct continuation or tne Concord and
Sudbury town line to the Assabetv River., The river
was a favorite abode of the Nipmuc Indians. Through
the years, numerous Indian relics have been uncovered
-.ong the length of the river which lends credence to
this bit of history. Near the Ben Smith Dam once were
found the remains of 6 Indians buried side by side,

-

and with the remains several Indian relics, Also, along
the'river have been found excavations which may have
been store-nouses for the Indian Corn. Tradition states
that the Indians once held a consultation on top of Pom=-
pasiticut Hill, overlooking Concord and Sudbury, to de-
cide which place to destroy. Because of fear of the ine-
fluence of Rev., Bdward Bulkley, Concord minister, with
their Great Spirit, Sudbury suffered while Concord was
sz;arede

King Philips Indian War in April 1676 created great
havoc to the Stow and Sudbury settlements and vothn dis-

tricts were sparsceliyv settled for a ¢uarter of

after-this conflicts
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In 1725 the inhabitants of the North-West District
were succesﬁful in petitioning the Court for a division
of the townvof Sudbury into an East and West Precincf,
This action opened the gateway to much progress in
building new meeting-houses, 'churches, schools, mills
and roads,

Cne of the earliest main highways in the new West
Precinct was the New Lancaster Road which ran from Sud-
bury Center passing between Vose's Pond and the 0ld
Rice Tavern into Stow. 1In i716 the first bridge actu=-
ally connecting the two towns was built over the Assa-
bet River on the Lancaster Road and was known as the
Dr. Wood's Bridge. We now know it as Russell's Bridge.
Another road was the 0ld Farlboro and Concord Road
which did exactly as the name implies - connected Con-
cord with MVarlboro and intersected with the New Lan-
caste™ Road at the Rice Tavern,

The lives of the early settlers in the ¥Maynard
territory depended on the products of the soil, This
was good farm country and the land on Porpasiticut
Hill was excellent pasiurage. The great forests ia

the area gave purpose to several saw and grist mills,

e

and the Iunmber used for increasing growth and develop-
ment of the area,
For many years there was no conmmercial centre to

-
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the settlement of the NForita WVest District, but ue
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process of time inhabitants tock up residences close
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to the Ac.ubet River. Water rower began to be used
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and a village was commenced,

In 1821 James and William Rice purchase a saw and

Agra;n miil previously owned by Jewell and Asa Smith

which was located on the Assabet River above the loca-
tion of the present mill near ¥ill Street and Sumuwer
Hill Road. They were the first men to use water-power
iﬁ this area for manufacturing and they made spindles
and other factory machinery for Smith's mill in Peter-
boro, New Hampshire, and Waltham, Nass., Insufficient
water pressure closed this mill,

In 1846, Lr. Amory Iaynard, with his ingenious
forsight in seeing great potential in water-power by
the use of dams, founded the Assabet ¥ill with a part-
ner, ¥r, William H. Knight of Saxonville. A dam was
built'across the Assabet, a canal dug channeling the
water into a reservoir for power through the use of
water-wheels. The mill was opened early in 1847 for
the manufacture of carpéts and carpet yarn,

In the meantime new roads and bridges were being
buiit affording shorter and more comfortable travel
to and from the small hamlet. The Ben Smith Bridge,
buils in 1816, opened the Great Road and made travel
from Sudbury to Stow more cdirect. The Faper ¥ill
Bridge, crossing the Assabet on Lower Fain Sireset was
built in 184C. In 1848 was built the Main Street
Bricdge at "I'r. Fnight's Faclory".

The organization of churches began not long after



)

Refo NO.

Ref., No.

3

2

Ref. Xo.l
) :
Ref., No.l

Ref. No.

3

the place began to develcp into a rapidly expanding
factory vilhage.

In 1839 an Evangelical Church was founded in
Stow. In 1850 a large number of the parishioners
left to help organize the Union Congregational Churchn
at Assabet Village. Services were first held in the
railroad éﬁgﬁion until 1852 when it was voted "to
build a church on a piece of land on the south side
of the road on the Stow side of the river" donated
specifically for the church by lessrs, Knight and
Maynard, |

The Fethodists held meetings at the Nason Street
School until 1868 when they leased Union Hall on Iain
Stfeet. The present church was built in 1895,

The Roman Catholic congregation built its first
chapel in 1864 and was aaministered to by priests from
Marlboro and Céﬁcord.

The laying of the railroad was an important his-
torical action. The XMarlboro Branch of the Fitchburg
Railroad was laid in 1849, extending from South Acton
through Stow to Hudson and Iarlboro., It was the intro;
duction into the area of the first new method of trans-
portation since the stage coaches, Also it did much to
expedite the shipping of freight to and from the Assabet
Bill Vorks.

Thus it was---a town was vorn. Assabet Village be-
came the by-product of mwen's ingenuily and his natural

inclination for continuous development, He used the
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virgin forests, the sloping pastures, the fertile
fields, the streagth of running streams, and harnessed
these gifts of nature to his brain and brawn,

The small village adopted the name "Assabet" from
the river dividing the two parent towms. On documents
dated about 1650 the river is spoken of as Asibeth, and
al.. Isabaeth, derivations of the Indian word Assabet,
which name has been in use on all maps and documents
since 1850, It means, in Algonquin language, "the
place where materials for meking fishnets grows",

Before 1870 it became obvious that tre small vill-
age should become an independent towm, and legal pro=-
ceedures were instituted to meke it one, The village
had a population twice as large as either Stow or Sud-
bury. It had 500 registered voters who were forced to ;
journey several miles to a polling-place over rough
country roads, It needed street lights, roads, side-
walks, police, and schools which the parent towns
were wont to supply. Diversified interests also ex-
isted. Assabet village was given to manufacturing---
the others to agriculture,

On January 26, 1871, Lr. Henry Fowler and 70 other
residents of the village submitted to the Legislature
the following bill:

To the Yonorable Scnate and House of Representatives

.
assacnucsetts:

of the Commonwealth of I
The undersigned citizens and legal voters of the

Northern part of Sudbury and thre Eastern part of Stow,

being the parts of said townc commonly caliled Assabet,
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unto your Hgnorable Body respectfully represent; that
|
tuated in the extreme rart of the towns to

they are s

%

which they belorngs; +that they are at the distance of
five miles f;om'the center of_Sudbury and three milez
from the center of Stow; <that there is no convenient
intercourse by any regular mode of conveyence with these
centres; that from all these causes, and from their
varience with said towns in pursuits and interests, tney
are sudject to great and injﬁrious inconveniences in
exercising their legal rights as voters and citizens;
that they are deprived of their fair share of Education-
al Advantages and street improvements according to their
taxation; that these evils are oppressive and can only
be remediedAby incorporating your petitioners into a
distinct municipaiity; that the territory which they
desire to have incdrporated into a town contains above
fifteen hundred inhabitants, more than three hundred
femilies, and over two hundred legal voters; that it
contains taxable property to the amount of eight hundred
thousand dollars, included in which is a large and quiclk-
iy growing woolen mznufactory with a very important wa-
ter-power, and a paper mill, and thrat the above liberal
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valuation is constantly increasingg that a brench of
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the Fitchburg Railroad passes through the center o
territory; that while it will ve of great advantage %o

your petitioners that said territory be incorrorated

e

ot
to a town it will not derrive the beforementioned towns

of any considerable proportional part of their territory.
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Wherefore, your petitioners pray that the above
named territory may be incorporated into a town bear-
ing the name of VAYNARD, with all the powers, privi-
leges, rights and liabilities of towns, anéd with sub-
stantially fhe following boéndary lines:

Beginning at the north-west corner of the farm
of the late Daniel Whitney; thence running southerly
to the mad westerly of the house of Jonathan P. Bents
thence more easterly on a straight line to the town
line separating Stow from Hudscn; thence easterly on said
town line to the South East corner of Stows thence North
Easterly on a straight line crossing Bottomless and Will=-
is Pond to the Concord town line, at or near the place
femiliarly known as Dungee Hole; then North Westerly on
said town line of Concord on the townm line.of Acton to ’
the point of beginrning,

Furthermofe your peti%ioners pray that an equita=-
ble share of all funds,/credits, and other public pro-
perty, real and perszonal may be cecreed to them, and
that they may be required to assume and pay their just
portion of the debts and liabilities of their respective

0TS
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towns, that is to say, that that portion of the d

w

and lizbilities of their resyective towas, that is ©o
éay that that portion of said territory waich now be=-
T azs to Sudbury ray be decrced to pay itz just porvion
of the debts and l*abkliiicw ¢f Sudvury, cond that that

portion which now belonzs to Stow oy o¢ decreed to pay

its just proportion of the devis and liabiilities of Stow,
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such porﬁiops to be assessed when, and in what manner
commissionefs appointed by your Honorable Body may de=
termine; ahd for all which your petitioners, as in
duty bound will ever pray.

The petition is signed Ey Henry TFowler and 70 others,

Not unexpectedly, ¥r. Fowler's petiﬁion triggered
strong reaction from both Stow and Sudbury., Several
small groups of residen;s proceeded to submit various
entreaties to the Courts both for and against the plea
for the new townm. Benjamin Smith, on January 26th (1871)
submitted the follow;ng document, which bore the signa=-
tures of 56 men:

To the Honorable Senate and House of Rerresentatives
in General Court assembled:

We, the undersigned inhabitants of and owners of i
real estate in the Northern part of Sudbury and the Eastern
vart of Stow, being those parts commonly called Assabet,
respectfully pray that the petition of Henry Fowler and
others for the incorporation of said territory into a town
may be granted, and as in duty bound will ever pray.

The following petition was suomitted by B. W. Gleason
February 15 (1871) and 24 other citizens of Stow in re-
monstrance against ¥r, Fowler's petition:

The undersigned inhabitants and qualified voters of
the town of Stow would respecifully remonstrate against
th.c creation of a new towvn as prayed for by Henry Fowler
off frowm our small town the

and others, by the taking

~
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most thrifty portion, the only portion that has increased



in its population and in its valuation for the past ten
years, é

And we decidedly object to the taking of a portion
of our citizens into a new town and compelling them fo
pay a portion of the large towvn debts of Sudoury, this
would be manifestly unfair and unjust, and we believe
that if action in this:matter for a few years, the condi-
tion of things will be 50 changed as to make it compara-
tively easy to correct all inconveniences now supposed

to exist for the wont of a new town,
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Another petition was submitted from Sudbury on

‘Pebruary 14, (1871) reading thusly:

To the Honorable Senate and House of Representa-
tives of lfassachusetts:

Vie, ﬁhe'subscribers, residents of the territory
surrounding the village of Assabet humbly represent
that we are desirous of being incorporated into the
ne. town petitioned for by Henry Fowler and others, and
therefore petition in aid of: the same,

This petition bore the familiar signatures of
Abiyan Brigham, Millard Maynard, Webster Cutting, Elli=-
ot Goding, Lewis Brigham, Gilbert Maynard and R. S.

Willis.



Two other petitions were submitted by Stow resi-
dents objecting to the new town, Calvin Hale, with
thirty three signers appealed to the Legislature Feb-
ruary 27th (1871) with this complaint:

The undérsigned legal voters of the town of Stcw
respectiully and urgently remonstrate against having
our small town divided for the purpose of forming a
new town as prayed for in the vpetition of Fenry Fowler
and others taking as it is proposed about one-talf of
our population and more than a third pa;t of the valua-
tion it would leave our ancient town in a weak and
crippled condition to which we most decidedly object.,

This was followed March 2 (1871) by another ob-
jection submitted by Henry Gates and 71 others express-

ing the same complaint,

f
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The tovn of Sudbury opposed the separation and
appointed a committee to nominate a committee of tnree
to oppose any petiiion to the General Court to set off
any part of.Sudbury. The committee, appointed on Janu-
ary 25, 1871 were Thomas Hurlbut, Charles Thompson and
James Joore, They were instructed by the townswmen to
"use all honorable means to rrevent the formation of a
new town",

The reasons against a'separate towm were insigni-
ficant in comparison to the appeals made by ¥r. Fowler,
Both towns were so large in area they could easily
forfeit the necessary land withouﬁ being impoverished,
The new territory had resources amply sufficient to
support itéelf.

Agreements were eventually established and é billd
passed by the Legislature April.19, 1871 incorporating
the town of Mayﬁard. The people in the village and those
in 211 the surrounding&areas were celebrating the anni-
versary of the Concord fight when the momentous news was
flashed over the telegraph wires that at twenty minutes
past five the charter had been signed, Assabet Village
was no more and Ifaynard was christened., It was a natur-
al conclusion that the new town be named after Amozry
Méynard, whose faith and foresight founded the s.al
village,

A gala ceremonial celebration was held on Thursday
fpril 27th (96 years ago tomorrow). It featured a parade

from Vain and Sudbury Streets, down Fain to Nason and



Summer Stre. ., back up Main Street to Walnut Street
The parage larshall was J. T. Foster, with aids W. V.
Harding, John Hickland, E. R. Chase and John Little,

One of the highlights of the day was the raising of
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pes from the top of Porpsiticut Hill
by Yessrs, Ben Smith, Charles Iaynard, J. K. Harriman
and Andrew Ictmachron., A pre-arranged signal from an
ancient cannon, used in the Revolutionary War at the
0ld North Bridge and borrowed from Concord for the
occasion, announced to the.world wnat the flag was un-
furled and wafting its blessings to the new community,
The celebration continued into thé evening with a
program of nusic and speeches at Riverside Hall. Speak-
ers were Rev, W. Hazlewood of the Congregational Church,
John Hillis, Joseph W. Reed, Henry Fowler and Gen. Jchﬁ
L. Swift. The entire cost of the celebration which in-
cluded such items as souvenir badges, printed programs,
a. carriage to Sudbury, Stow and Concord, the cannon and
three kegs of powder came to the unheard of sum of £818,23}
The first town meeting was held at Riversicde Hall
(now Gruber's Block) prior to the Inaugural celedbration
Joseph W. Reed, prominent lawyer from Acton who witn John
Hillis and James Sweeney drew up the terms of the town
Cnarter, read the first warrant calling for the election
of officers, Ir. Asabzl Balcolm was unanimously chosen

as moderator. OCther officizls elected were:
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ruary 20, 1871, the ccmmiitiec was granted permissio:

SELLCTVEN - Asabel Palcolm
Henry Fowler
Jonathan Bent
ASSESSORS Asabel Balcolm
Benjamwin. Conant
Thomas H. Brooks
TRIUASURER Lorenzo Maynard
CONSTABLES XFred Fletcher
William llaxwell
Thomas Farrell
On April 1, 1872, the Suddbury Committee of three
who were chosen to oprose thre incorporation reported
to the town of Sudbury that previous to any hearings
before the Legislature on the petition of Henry Fowler
and others for an act incorporating the town of laynard
certain propositions were made by the petitioners as
terms of a separaticn and settlement between the town

of "Sudbury and the proposed new town. Having reviewed'

these propositions before the citizens of Sudbury, Feb-
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arrange a satisfacto;y settlement, This same committee
had 2lso attended to the establishment of boundaries ove=-
tween the two towns and erected stone moruments marked

By

S and ¥ at such places as the line crosses the highway.

The cormittee of ¥essrs. Hurlbut, Thompson and
Yoore were retained by the iown of Sudbury to handle all

matters and unforeseen vnroblems rertaining to Sudbury and
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the new towvn, and to supervise th

chzrter incorporating the town of ¥aynard. The terms of

the cherter stipulated thret Jaynard was to ray to th
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town of Stow $6,500.C0, and to Sudbury 522,5CC.0C. Sud-

bury transferred to Vayanard 1(4 share of stock in the
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Framingham-and Lowell Railroad. ¥Faynard agreed to pay
&3500,00 a year for ten vears toward the support of their
paupers and one~third part of the cost of the support
of their military paupers, The first payment was made
by ¥ayrnard. on May 1, 1871 of $1,335,00 to Sudbury and
$738.73 to Stow,
A census taken Iay 1, 1871 reveals the following

statistics:

895 males

925 females

488 polis

Total valuation £1,002,000,00

Total number dwellings 321

Total number cows 275

Total number horses 79

Total number sheep i 8 ;
Total number acres of taxed land S 4015



Deed for the Third Grant lands (the two-mile Grant) on record

¥ of the Middlesex Registry of deeds in Cambridge.

‘For as much as the General Court of the Kassachusetts
Colony in New England hath formerly granted to the Tovne of
Sudbury in the County of Fiddlesex in the same Colony, an
addition of land of two miles westward of their former grant
of five miles, which is also laid out and adjoyneth to it:
and whereas the English occupiers, proprietors and possessors
thereof have chosen Captain Edmond Goodenow, Josiah Haynes,
John Goodenow, John Brigham and Joseph Freeman to be a com=-
mittee for themselves and for all the rest of‘the English pro-
prietors thereof, giving them the full power to treat with
and purchase the same of the Indian proprietors of the said
tract of land and to satisfy and pay them for their native
ancient and hereditary right title and interest thereunto,

Know all People by these presents-~-That we Jehojakim,
John Magos, John Ifuskgua and his two daughters Esther and
Rachel, Benjamin Bohue, John Speen and Sarah his wife, James
Speen, Dorothy Wennetoo and Humphrey Bohue her son, Mary
Neppanum, Abigail the daughter of Josiah Harding, Peter Jeth-
To, Petef ¥uskquamogh, Johm Boman, David NMannoon and Betty
who are the ancient native and hereditary Indian proprietors
of the aforesaid two miles of land (for and in consideration
of the just and full sum of twelve pounds of current money of
New England to them in hand well and truly raid at or before
the ensealing and delivery hereof by the said Captain Edmond
Goodenow, Josiah Haines, John Goodenow, John Brigham and Joseph

Freeman in behalfe of themselves and the rest of the English

f



possessors, occupiers, proprietors and fellow~-purchasers) the
receipt whereof they do hereby acknowledge and therewith to be
fully satisfied, contented and paid and thereof and of every
part and parcell thereof they do hereby for themselves and their
heyrs Executors, Administrators and assigns clearly, fully and
absolutely release, acquit, exonerate and discharge them and all
the English possessors, occupiers, proprietors and fellow-pur-
chasers of the same and all and every one of tkeir heirs, Execut-
ors, Administrators, Assigns and successors forever, have given,
granted, bargained sold, aliened, made over and confirmed, and
by these presents, do give, grant, bargain, sell, alien, make
over, confirm and deliver their said tract and parcels of land
of two miles (bee it more or less scituated lying and being)
altogether in. one entire parcell in the said Town of Sudbury in
the County of Middlesex aforesaid and lyeth al alcng through-
out on the western side of the old five miles of the said town
and adjoineth théreunté (together with.the farm lands of William
Browne that lyeth within the same tract unto the said Captain
Tdmond Goodenow, Josiah Haines, John Goodenow, John Brigham and
Joseph Freeman and untc all and everyone of the rest of the Eng-
1ish possessors, occupiers, proprieters and fellow purchasers
thereof as the same is limited, butted and bounded on the East
by the old part of the said Towne of Sudbury (which was the five
miles first granted) and is butted and bounded northerly by the
line or bounds of the Towne of Concord, westerly by the line or
bounds of the Tovme of Stow énd is bounded southerly and partly
westerly by the lands of N¥r. Thomas Danforth. All the lands

within said bounds of hills, valleys, plains, intervals, mezdows,



swamps, with all tﬁe timber, trees, woods, underwoods, grass and
herbage, rocks, stones, mines, minerals, with all the rivers,
riverlettes, brooks, streams, springs, ponds and all manner of
watercourses and whatsoever is therein and thereupon above ground
and underground, with all members, rights, titles royalties, 1lib-
erties, privileges; proprietys, uses, profits, and commodities
thereof and every part and parcel thereof and that is every way
and in any wise thereunto and appertaining. To Have, Hold, use
occupie, possess, enjoy to the only absolute proper use benefit,
befoofe and dispose of them as the said English possessors, ocC-
cupiers, proprietors snd fellow purchasers of the Town of Sud-
bury and their heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and
successors in a free full and perfect estate of inheritance from
the day of the date hereof and so for ever, And the above named
Indian Grantors do also hereby covenant promise and grant to and
with the above named Edmond Goodenow, Josiah Haynes, John Goode=-
now, John Brigham and Joseph Freeman and all the rest of the
English possessors, oécupiers, proprietors and fellow purchasers
of the said two miles of land (bee it more or less) as above
bounded that at the ensealing and delivery hereof, they are the
only and absolute Indian proprietors of the premises and that
they (and none else) have just and full power in themselves the
same thus to sell, convey, confirm, make over and deliver and
they do hearby engage and bind tbemseives and their heyrs, exe-
cutors, administrators, and assigns from time to time and at all
times hereafter fully and sufficiently to:secure save harmlese
and forever defend the hereby granted and bargained two miles of

grant (as is above grounded bee it more or less) with all the



@

'“rights and appurtenances there unto belonging, against all

manner and singular other titles, troubles, charges, demends

and ihcumbrances that may be made or raysed by any person or
persons (espe¢ially Indians) else whatsoever lawfully having

or claiming any right, title or interest in or to the premises

or to any part or parcell thereof to the trouble vexation charges
interruption or ejection of the above said English possessors,
occupiers, proprietors or fellow-purchasers of the same or any
one of them, they or any one of their heyrs, executors, adminis-
trators or assigns in his or their quiet and peaceable possessgion
free and full use enjoyment or dispose thereof or any part or
parcell thereof forever, Furthermore, wee the above named Indian
Grantors do hereby oblige and engage ourselves all and everyone
of our heyrs, executors, administrators, and assigns that wee

and every one of us and ours as aforesaid shall and will from
time to time and at all times readily and effectively do (at our
propper costs and charges) or cause to be so done any other or
further act or acts or things that the law doth or may require
for more sure making and full confirming of all and singular the
hereby granted premises unto the said Edmond Goodenow, Josiah
Haynes, John Goodenow, John Brigham and Joseph Freeman and unto
all and everyone of the rest of the English possessors, occupiers,
proprietors and fellow-purchasers of the premises and unto all
and every one of their heyrs and executors, administrators, and
assigns-forever, In witness thereof the above-named Indian
Grantors have here-unto each for themselves and altogether sett
their hands and seals, dated the 11th day of July in the year of

our Lord God one thousand six hundred eighty-four (1684).
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JEHOJAKIM - his mark X for himself and by order of and for
. John Boman and seale, O.

JOHN MAGOS - for himself and by order of and for Jacob Magos
his father and seale, 0.

WUSKQUA JOHN and for his two daughters Rachel and Esther and
seale, O,

JOHN SPEEN - his mark 1 and for and by order of his wife and seale, O.

‘ABIGAIL - Daughter of Josiah Harding and his sole heyre
her mark and seale, O.

SARAH her marke who is the widow of Josiah Harding and
mother of said Abigail and her Guardian,

PETER MUSKQUANOG X his mark and seale, O.

BENJAVMIN BOHUE - his R mark and seale, O.

DOROTHY WENNETO - her O marke and seale, O.

MARY NEPAMUN her Q marke and seale. O.

BETTY ) marke and seale. O,

PETER JETHRO and a seale.

JOHN X BOWNAN his mark and seale,

JANES SFEEN and seale.



